
 

 
 

NOTICE OF MEETING 
 
Meeting 
 

Culture and Communities Select Committee 
 

Date and Time Monday, 21st September, 2020 at 10.00 am 
  
Place Remote meeting 
  
Enquiries to members.services@hants.gov.uk 
  
John Coughlan CBE 
Chief Executive 
The Castle, Winchester SO23 8UJ 
 
FILMING AND BROADCAST NOTIFICATION 
This meeting is being held remotely and will be recorded and broadcast live via the 
County Council’s website. 

AGENDA 
 
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   
 
 To receive any apologies for absence. 

 
2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 
 All Members who believe they have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in 

any matter to be considered at the meeting must declare that interest 
and, having regard to the circumstances described in Part 3 Paragraph 
1.5 of the County Council's Members' Code of Conduct, leave the 
meeting while the matter is discussed, save for exercising any right to 
speak in accordance with Paragraph 1.6 of the Code. Furthermore all 
Members with a Non-Pecuniary interest in a matter being considered at 
the meeting should consider whether such interest should be declared, 
and having regard to Part 5, Paragraph 2 of the Code, consider whether 
it is appropriate to leave the meeting while the matter is discussed, save 
for exercising any right to speak in accordance with the Code. 
 

3. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING  (Pages 3 - 8) 
 
 To confirm the minutes of the previous meeting held on 28 July 2020. 

 
4. DEPUTATIONS   
 
 To receive any deputations notified under Standing Order 12. 

 
 
 

Public Document Pack



5. CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS   
 
 To receive any announcements the Chairman may wish to make. 

 
6. HAMPSHIRE CULTURAL TRUST UPDATE  (Pages 9 - 54) 
 
 To receive an update from the Hampshire Cultural Trust also 

incorporating information on theatres and entertainment venues across 
the county. 
 

7. COUNTRY PARKS UPDATE/IMPACT OF COVID  (Pages 55 - 78) 
 
 To receive an update from the Director of Culture, Communities and 

Business Services on the County Council’s country parks.  
 

8. UPDATE ON LIBRARY OPENING TIMES CONSULTATION   
 
 To receive an update from the Director of Culture, Communities and 

Business Services on the Library Service opening times consultation. 
 

9. WORK PROGRAMME  (Pages 79 - 82) 
 
 To consider the Committee’s forthcoming Work Programme. 

 
 
 
 
ABOUT THIS AGENDA: 

On request, this agenda can be provided in alternative versions (such as 
large print, Braille or audio) and in alternative languages. 
 
ABOUT THIS MEETING: 

The press and public are welcome to observe the public sessions of the 
meeting via the webcast. 



 

AT A REMOTE MEETING of the Culture and Communities Select Committee of 
HAMPSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL held on Tuesday, 28th July, 2020: 

 
Chairman: 

* Councillor Anna McNair Scott 
 

* Councillor Christopher Carter 
* Councillor John Bennison 
* Councillor Fred Birkett 
* Councillor Jackie Branson 
* Councillor Ann Briggs 
* Councillor Zilliah Brooks 
* Councillor Peter Chegwyn 
* Councillor Daniel Clarke 
* Councillor Rod Cooper 
 

* Councillor Pal Hayre 
* Councillor Dominic Hiscock 
* Councillor Rob Mocatta 
* Councillor Michael White 
   
 

 
*Present 

 

94.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
All Members were present and no apologies were noted. 
 

95.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
Members were mindful that where they believed they had a Disclosable 
Pecuniary Interest in any matter considered at the meeting they must declare 
that interest at the time of the relevant debate and, having regard to the 
circumstances described in Part 3, Paragraph 1.5 of the County Council's 
Members' Code of Conduct, leave the meeting while the matter was discussed, 
save for exercising any right to speak in accordance with Paragraph 1.6 of the 
Code. Furthermore Members were mindful that where they believed they had a 
Non-Pecuniary interest in a matter being considered at the meeting they 
considered whether such interest should be declared, and having regard to Part 
5, Paragraph 2 of the Code, considered whether it was appropriate to leave the 
meeting whilst the matter was discussed, save for exercising any right to speak 
in accordance with the Code. 
 

96.   MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING  
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 16 January 2020 were agreed by the 
Committee as a correct record. 
 

97.   DEPUTATIONS  
 
There were no deputations. 
 
 
 
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



 

98.   CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS  
 
The Chairman had several announcements as this had been the first 
Committee meeting since the Covid-19 lockdown and ongoing national 
crisis. The Chairman expressed thanks to all staff who had worked so hard 
to manage throughout the epidemic. The Chairman made the following 
announcements: 
 

 Many culture and community services had been required to close at 

the onset of the national lockdown. The Chairman was pleased to 

add that, at the time of thee meeting, all services had begun to re-

open based upon Government guidance and with emphasis on 

customer and staff safety.  

 In accordance with guidelines, Country Parks had opened some 

facilities on 13 May and farm attractions and Titchfield Haven had 

opened on 6 July. Camping, toilet facilities and the cafes had 

reopened at Calshot, Tile Barn and Runways End with the 

Hampshire Mountain Centre in Wales remaining closed in line with 

Welsh policy. 
 Libraries reopened on 6 July for short visits and with reduced hours. 

Digital library provision had been ongoing and had been extremely 

popular throughout the lockdown period. Demand for digital services 

had understandably increased by a significant percentage. Many 

services were now being delivered using social media with 

interactive videos, clubs, groups being available online. The home 

library service had resumed deliveries in the week of 18 May. 

99.   LIBRARY SERVICE TRANSFORMATION - STRATEGY TO 2025  
 
The Committee considered the report of the Director of Culture, Communities 
and Business Services regarding the Library Service Transformation to 2025 and 
proposals to achieve required savings as part of the Transformation to 2021 
programme.  
 
The Chairman noted that she had received some County Councillor requests to 
speak on this item and invited these Members to address the Committee. 
Councillor Glen spoke regarding the proposed closure of Odiham Library and 
expressed his concerns that Basingstoke and Fleet library branches were too far 
to travel should Odiham be closed. Councillor Burgess spoke regarding the 
volume of responses received as part of the consultation and noted that he 
echoed the views of the majority of respondents from the Lee-on-Solent area 
who had requested that the library remain open. Councillor Frankum spoke 
regarding the proposal to keep Chineham Library open and thanked officers for 
their work on the consultation and for assessing the data in detail. Councillor 
Westbrook urged the Committee to look at other options for the evolution of the 
service as opposed to closing libraries particularly South Ham Library, noting the 
important role that libraries play for young people from deprived communities.  
 
After Councillors had spoken, the Chairman thanked them for their comments 
and invited Nicola Horsey, Assistant Director – Regulatory and Community 

Page 4



 

Services and Emma Noyce, Head of Libraries, to deliver a presentation and 
introduce the report.  
 
The following information was noted by the Committee through the presentation: 
 

 From 9 January 2020 to 18 March 2020 the County Council conducted an 
open consultation, seeking the views of people who live, work and/or 
study in Hampshire, and of wider stakeholders, on proposed changes to 
the Hampshire Library Service. 

 The supporting information within the consultation set out the context for 
making the planned savings of £1.76million as part of the County 
Council’s Transformation to 2021 programme (T21). The programme was 
established in response to the Council £80million funding ‘gap’ due to a 
significantly reduced Central Government grant, growing demand for 
statutory services and rising costs and inflation. Savings totals were 
agreed by the County Council across all departments at its meeting in 
November 2019 and this included the Library Service.  

 The consultation had been widely promoted and received many 
responses reaching 21,200 in total. Following extensive analysis, some of 
the main findings of the consultation were set out for the Committee within 
the presentation slides.  

 The impact of the Covid-19 national crisis on the service was highlighted, 
in particular that it would not be possible to meet the income generation 
target  and that other planned activities would need to deliver more to 
make up for the loss.  

 The options for making the planned T21 savings were set out. The 
Committee also reviewed the role of the Task and Finish Group (T&FG) 
who had, alongside officers, investigated these options and had 
contributed towards the development of the proposals. Members noted 
that comprehensive Equality Impact Assessments had been compiled for 
both staff and for service users.  

 
In response to Members’ questions, the following information was confirmed: 

 That the £210,000 planned additional savings for 2020/21 referred to on 
slide 16 of the presentation related to vacancy management savings that 
were being realised as staff had left their roles. Assurance was given that 
there were no plans to close any additional library branches on top of 
those which had been proposed.  

 That officers were intending to hold discussions with community 
representatives from all eight libraries proposed for closure to enable work 
to begin on transitioning to become independent libraries should the 
community wish to pursue this option. 

 That should the proposals in the report be agreed, a network of 40 
physical libraries countywide, a comprehensive and growing digital offer 
(for which the County Council Library Service was renowned on a national 
scale), options for those who are unable to visit their local library, 
membership schemes, specialist services, resources and reference 
materials, the School Library Service and the online social media 
interactive offer were considered to satisfy the statutory requirement 
within the Public Libraries and Museums Act 1964 for local authorities to 
‘provide a comprehensive and efficient Library Service for all persons’. 

Page 5



 

 That notwithstanding the opening times consultation taking place in the 
school summer holidays, the views of students who use libraries for study, 
and who were acknowledged as a key demographic group of library 
users, would be sought. The opening times consultation would be 
available online. It was confirmed that many students and young people 
had engaged with and responded to the initial consultation online 
following a successful social media campaign.  

 That mother and baby provision would be maintained in a variety of ways 
were the proposed closures to be agreed. For example, the breadth of the 
service encompassed physical branches, a comprehensive and 
interactive digital offer and the group membership scheme open to all 
Early Years providers. Members were informed that the eight libraries 
proposed for closure accounted for 5% of all Hampshire library visits and 
assured that high quality service provision would continue to be provided. 

 That discussions were ongoing with officers from Eastleigh Borough 
Council around the relocation of Eastleigh Library from the Swan Centre 
to a more accessible location in Eastleigh town centre. This was a priority 
for both authorities working in partnership relocate the branch. 

 That the way in which the standardisation of opening hours had been 
calculated was to group comparable libraries to ensure a fair approach to 
the distribution of hours. Following specific reference to Lockswood and 
Hedge End libraries, it was confirmed that Lockswood had historically had 
shorter opening hours whereas Hedge End had historically had longer 
opening hours. This meant that as the standardisation was applied there 
would be variance in the percentage reduction. 

 With reference to page 40, paragraph 157 of the report, it was confirmed 
the management, and/or purchase, of premises for the eight libraries 
proposed for closure by community groups would need different solutions 
depending on the circumstances. There likely would not be a ‘one size fits 
all’ route and that all options were being explored. 

 That one-off funding was provided in 2011 towards the purchase of self-
service terminals at Hedge End and West End libraries from Eastleigh 
Borough Council and the two respective Town Councils. Since 2011, this 
technology had been updated and associated costs had been covered by 
the County Council. 

 That the option of moving the Library Service into a trust model had been 
explored. This approach had been investigated in previous years and had 
been recently re-evaluated at the request of the Task and Finish Group 
(T&FG). Members noted that the Library Service worked closely with 
libraries nationwide who operate within a trust and that feedback had not 
been overly positive for this arrangement with cost benefits not always 
realised, a strong reliance on generated income and significant initial 
setup costs. Officers remained open minded but noted that this approach 
was not appropriate for Hampshire at this time. 

 That discussions were ongoing with officers from Havant Borough Council 
into the relocation of Havant Library from the Meridian Centre to a more 
suitable location as part of the redevelopment of Havant town centre.  

 
Some Members noted that they felt their experience within the T&FG had not 
been beneficial and that information on the available options for the Service had 
not been forthcoming. Councillor Clarke requested that it be recorded that he 
and Councillor Chegwyn had resigned from the T&FG. 

Page 6



 

 
The majority of Members appointed to the T&FG noted how useful they had 
found the meetings in being able to hold open discussions with officers, to visit 
libraries and liaise directly with the public, the community and members of staff 
to influence proposals as they were developed based on their experiences and 
information obtained. Members of the T&FG viewed their group role as working 
alongside officers to make difficult choices for the Library Service. 
 
Generally, Members were strongly in agreement that any library seeking to 
develop into an independent, community branch would require support from the 
County Council. The Committee noted the passion of local communities in 
Hampshire and were hopeful that this enthusiasm would carry through into 
running libraries locally. A suggestion was raised regarding potential sponsorship 
opportunities for any independent branch and this was noted.  
 
The Committee thanked officers and staff for conducting the significant and 
challenging piece of work over the recent months and thanked all those who had 
responded to the consultation.  
 
The Chairman invited the Executive Member for Recreation and Heritage to 
comment. Councillor Woodward noted that he had observed the full discussion 
and debate. He was grateful to the Committee for their views and made an 
assurance that he would consider these carefully, along with all other feedback, 
in advance of his Decision Day. 
 
Overall, the Committee were understanding that the proposed closure of libraries 
would be saddening to those affected communities and stakeholders but strongly 
supported additional resource proposals to help develop the branches into 
independent libraries.  
 
Taking this into account, the Chairman proposed an additional recommendation 
to the Executive Member. This was seconded by the Vice-Chairman, Councillor 
Carter.  
 
“That the Executive Member approves the support for Independent Community 
Libraries to have access to the Library Service Group Membership Scheme to 
refresh their physical stock and to reserve specific titles from the Hampshire 
Library Collection, including Ready Reads if collected on behalf of a Hampshire 
Library customer.” 
 
The recommendations, including the additional recommendation as above, were 
put to the vote. With 9 votes for the recommendations, 3 against and 1 
abstention, it was therefore RESOLVED: 
 
That the Culture and Communities Select Committee recommends to the 
Executive Member for Recreation and Heritage that he: 

i) Approves the achievement of £1.76 million savings through the Libraries 
Transformation Programme.  

ii) Approves the operations target to be increased by £75,000 to 
£1.115million in order to compensate for the under delivery of the income 
generation target. 

iii) Approves the Library Vision to 2025. 

Page 7



 

iv) Confirms that that he is satisfied that the Library Service described in 
paragraph 66 of the report meets the statutory requirements of the Public 
Libraries and Museums Act 1964, comprising a comprehensive and 
efficient service which meets the needs of those who live, work and study 
in Hampshire.    

v) Approves the closure of the eight libraries listed in paragraph 153 of the 
report: Blackfield, Elson, Fair Oak, Horndean, Lee-on-the-Solent, 
Lyndhurst, Odiham and South Ham.  

vi) Approves a reduction in opening hours across the Service averaging 20%, 
together with proposals to standardise hours as far as practical.    

vii) Approves a second public consultation to confirm the actual opening times 
at each council-run library and delegates authority to determine opening 
times to the Director of Culture, Communities and Business Services in 
consultation with the Executive Member.  

viii) Approves the Library Service’s plan to withdraw support from Lowford, 
Kingsclere, Milford-on-Sea and North Baddesley community-managed 
libraries and help them to transition to an independent community library 
model. 

ix) Instructs the Library Service to explore different and more effective ways 
to deliver services for Hampshire’s most deprived communities, initially in 
Leigh Park, Havant and Bridgemary, taking into account any opportunities 
to support communities in Elson. 

x) Agrees the plans to deliver efficiencies of £146,000 from library resources. 
xi) Approves the Library Service’s plans to generate income through room 

hire and leases; reviewing current fees and charges; and encouraging 
fundraising, sponsorship and donations to the Service.    

xii) Notes that the Income Generation target set out within the consultation 
document will not be met within the required timescales and therefore 
adjusts other savings targets accordingly.   

xiii) Gives due regard to the Equalities, Human Resource and Financial 
impacts of each of the recommendations and agrees the mitigation 
proposed.  

xiv) Notes the timelines for implementation. 
xv) Approves the support for Independent Community Libraries to have 

access to the Library Service Group Membership Scheme to refresh their 
physical stock and to reserve specific titles from the Hampshire Library 
Collection, including Ready Reads if collected on behalf of a Hampshire 
Library customer. 
 

100.   WORK PROGRAMME  
 
The Committee received the report of the Director of Transformation and 
Governance which set out the Committee’s upcoming work programme.  
  
The following item was proposed to be added, if possible for the September 
meeting: An update on theatres and entertainment venues across Hampshire. 
  
RESOLVED: 
 
That the Work Programme, subject to the additions set out above, was agreed. 
 

Page 8



HCC Select Committee - 21 September 2020

P
age 9

A
genda Item

 6



Agenda

❑ HCT today

❑ Highlights and performance 2019-20

❑ Response to COVID-19

❑ Looking ahead

P
age 10



Our venues

P
age 11



HCT today

P
age 12



Strategic goals

P
age 13



HCT today

❑ Strategic five-year plan due for launch in 

March 2021 (following consultation with 

Founding Local Authorities and Arts 

Council) 

P
age 14



❑ Recognition as a charity with social impact at its heart

❑ Strong reputation within wider sector

❑ Strong relationship with critical founding partners

❑ Umbrella brand with local identities

❑ Significant organisational transformation since creation

▪ Identity

▪ Governance

▪ People

▪ Digital

▪ Funding

Our identity

P
age 15



Highlights and performance 2019-20

P
age 16



9

To provide high-quality programmes and venues that engage 
diverse audiences and inspire local pride

Goal one

❑ Michelangelo’s Sistine 
Chapel: A Different 
View across three venues 
with more than 8,000 
tickets sold to our first 
admission charging 
temporary exhibition

❑ Orla Kiely: A Life in Pattern at 
The Gallery, Winchester 
Discovery Centre one of the 
most popular ever exhibitions at 
the Gallery, with 17,612 visitors

❑ The BP Portrait Award 
exhibition from the National 
Portrait Gallery secured for the 
very first time. It attracted 
14,929 visitors

P
age 17



To provide high-quality programmes and venues that engage 
diverse audiences and inspire local pride

Goal one

❑ Lucienne Day: Living Design at the 
Sainsbury Gallery at the Willis 
Museum in Basingstoke

❑ Milestones Museum summer exhibition We’ll 
meet again… commemorating the 80th

anniversary of the outbreak of World War II

❑ I Grew Up 80s, an exhibition
at both Gosport Gallery and the  Sainsbury 
Gallery at the Willis Museum in Basingstoke, 
gave an entire generation a chance to 
wallow in 80s nostalgia with over 200 iconic 
objects that defined the decade

P
age 18



Investment

Milestones Museum

❑ HCT investment £210,000
❑ HCC investment £30,000

P
age 19



Investment

Aldershot Military Museum

❑ HCT investment £30,000
❑ TAG investment £15,000
❑ Armed Forces Covenant Fund Trust     
❑ £18,000   for planned Resilience garden

Winchester City Museum

❑ HCT investment £60,000

P
age 20



Schools

❑ 20,048 school children enjoyed a 
wide range of programmes, of 
which 9,593 enjoyed activities at 
Milestones Museum

❑ Schools income 2019-20 - £113,194

P
age 21



Collections

Accessioned 75 new objects including:

❑ A selection of 34 framed and unframed landscape artworks 
by Hampshire artist Ronald Broad

❑ A Georgian purse, believed to have been found in the crypt 
of Winchester Cathedral by a contractor working on the 
subsidence

❑ We loaned 56 historic handbags to Spielzeug Welten
Museum in Basel

❑ All 17 museums continue to meet 
the standards for Arts Council 
England accreditation

P
age 22



15

Goal two
To improve wellbeing, health and happiness
through cultural experiences

❑ 18 targeted social impact programmes
❑ 82 partners 
❑ 2000 participants 

Horizon 20:20

Summer Arts Award

The Ice Project

P
age 23



16

Goal two
To improve wellbeing, health and happiness
through cultural experiences

Still Curious

On The Move!

Veterans wellbeing programme

P
age 24



Goal three
To deliver a sustainable future for culture in Hampshire, contributing to the local 
economy and building stronger communities

Year End 2019-20Turnover £6.9m

P
age 25



Visitor figures 2019-20

Goal three
To deliver a sustainable future for culture in Hampshire, contributing to the local 
economy and building stronger communities

Venues closed 18 March –
two weeks of financial 
year remaining

(Est. lost visitors – 15k)

P
age 26



Earned income

Goal three
To deliver a sustainable future for culture in Hampshire, contributing to the local 
economy and building stronger communities

P
age 27



Income & Expenditure

Goal three
To deliver a sustainable future for culture in Hampshire, contributing to the local 
economy and building stronger communities

P
age 28



Goal four
To create fulfilling employment and volunteering opportunities
through culture

❑ Volunteers – 37,834 contributed 
hours

❑ Learning and development 
programmes 1,800 hours of training

❑ Introduced e-learning platform

❑ Enhancement to employee benefits

P
age 29



Goal four
To create fulfilling employment and volunteering opportunities
through culture

❑ Newly developed value framework
❑ Our values support our vision and shape our culture

P
age 30



Response to COVID - 19

P
age 31



COVID – 19 response

❑ Venues closed on 24 March, 105 events postponed, 71 events cancelled

❑ Structured internal communication plan – regular updates on Workplace platform

❑ Furloughed 160 employees and casual workers (46% of FTEs)

❑ Assistance from business grants and emergency funding from NLHF

P
age 32



❑ Brand new online digital publication 
published within 10 days of closure - Culture 
on Call

❑ Showcasing the breadth, depth and 
creativity of our programme online 

❑ 20 weeks, 224 articles, 11.5 per week

❑ 50,000 page visits, average 2 minute 
duration

www. Culture on Call .com

P
age 33



www. Culture on Call .com

P
age 34



www. Culture on Call .com

P
age 35



Press coverage

P
age 36



COVID – 19 response

❑ Social impact programme, Brighter Futures supporting adults 
with mental health - taken online

❑ 12 free courses April – July – all fully booked

❑ This included poetry for wellbeing and two life writing for 
wellbeing courses designed and led by Hampshire Poet, Kathryn 
Bevis

P
age 37



COVID – 19 response

❑ Arts centres launched online classes to replace 
onsite delivery

❑ pre-recorded content and live sessions (Zoom)
❑ Topics ranging from art appreciation and painting to 

street dance and meditation 
❑ Over 200 participants, over £3,000 income

Participant work from Painting Masterclass Chez Vous

❑ Live performance programme severely 
impacted

❑ Invested in live streaming and took 
popular summer Westival on-line

Matro Rancho streaming during Westival

P
age 38



COVID – 19 re-opening

❑ Planned to open at the earliest opportunity
❑ Ticketing and booking system implemented for 

all venues
❑ High quality safety measures in place
❑ 150 individual safety signs designed and 

produced
❑ Risk assessments completed and published 

online for all venues
❑ Contactless donation units installed

PHASE VENUE OPENING 
DATE

1 Chilcomb House site; Staff by appt ONLY. No public access. 1-Jun-2020

2 Aldershot Military Museum 4-Jul-2020

Chilcomb House site; Open for public and staff Monday to Thursday 4-Jul-2020

Red House Museum and Gardens 4-Jul-2020

Basing House 4-Jul-2020

Milestones Museum 4-Jul-2020

Westgate Museum 4-Jul-2020

Winchester City Museum 4-Jul-2020

F2 *By appt only via collections@hampshireculturaltrust.org.uk 6-Jul-2020

City Space, Winchester Discovery Centre 6-Jul-2020

The Gallery, Winchester Discovery Centre 6-Jul-2020

3 Westbury Manor Museum 15-Jul-2020

Willis Museum and Sainsbury Gallery 15-Jul-2020

Allen Gallery 16-Jul-2020

Gosport Gallery 17-Jul-2020

Bursledon Windmill 25-Jul-2020

West End Centre (Workshops & Live streaming) 20-Jul-2020

Ashcroft Arts Centre (Workshops & Live streaming) 20-Jul-2020

Forest Arts Centre (Workshops & Live streaming) 20-Jul-2020

4 Andover Museum ( 1-Aug-2020

Eastleigh Museum 1-Aug-2020

5 West End Centre 1-Sep-2020

Ashcroft Arts Centre 1-Sep-2020

Forest Arts Centre 1-Sep-2020

Curtis Museum *Date reassessed when volunteer resources confirmed 3-Sep-2020

Hampshire Wardrobe 7-Sep-2020

Wessex Dance Academy TBC

6 Rockbourne Roman Villa 2021

P
age 39



COVID – 19 re-opening

P
age 40



COVID – 19 re-opening

P
age 41



COVID – 19 re-opening

P
age 42



Looking ahead

P
age 43



Looking ahead

❑ £480k application to Arts Council England Cultural Recovery Fund

Year End Forecast 2020-21

P
age 44



Forecast financial position 2020-21
Unrestricted income (does not include funded projects)

P
age 45



COVID – 19 re-opening

❑ Promotional campaign to encourage people 
back to our venues

❑ Fundraising campaign

P
age 46



COVID – 19 re-opening

P
age 47



COVID – 19 re-opening

P
age 48



Flagship Galleries
Returning, where we left off…

GosportWinchester Willis

P
age 49



Visitors

Earned income

Venue Donations

Gift Aid

Admissions

Box Office

Workshops

Other income

Shop sales

Cafe and bar sales

Events Income

Total Income

Income per head

32,005 29,977 7,494 4,529 46,668 42,984 10,746 14,332 

£4,640 £3,207 £802 £698

£4,632 £8,493 £2,123 £4,071

£8,237 £4,492 £1,123 £1,804

£11,886 £18,935 £4,734 £11,001

£41,963 £70,765 £17,691 £24,811

£22,746 £23,451 £0 £0

£6,703 £8,371 £0 £2,015

£29,761 £17,497 £4,374 £1,112

£9,078 £16,294 £4,073 £6,190

£27,628 £39,398 £9,849 £4,341

£280 £1,675 £419 £0

£108,458 £140,800 £35,200 £66,215

£2,218 £647 £0 £370

£17,649 £9,990 £0 £2,032

-£24,526 £16,042 £4,010 £3,841

£30,735 £33,727 £8,432 £14,518

£41,372 £45,888 £11,472 £13,189

£11,577 £1,575 £394 £0

£147,432 £189,150 £39,332 £43,238

£4.61 £6.31 £5.25 £9.55

£207,606 £272,095 £65,365 £112,969

£4.45 £6.33 £6.08 £7.88

2019-20 Budget Forecast Actual 2019-20 Budget Forecast Actual

July August

P
age 50



Paul Joyce

Andy Singleton, 2 Oct – 20 Jan

Flagship Galleries

Paul Joyce, 29 Jan – 21 Apr Gosport Past & Present, 8 Jan – 27 FebMythomania, 27 Oct – 16 Jan

Watercolour Comp 27 Oct – 16 Jan Marvellous Mechanicals, 15 Oct – 19 Dec

P
age 51



Best Companies Pulse Survey: Jul – Aug 20

We did not take part in the actual 
process in 2020 but our score would 
put us at 54 if we had returned these 
results.

Indicative placing: 
No. 54

P
age 52



Looking ahead

P
age 53



Thank you

P
age 54



Country Parks Update
Culture & Communities Select Committee

21 September 2020

Jo Heath

Head of Countryside

P
age 55

A
genda Item

 7



Country Parks Transformation

Once in a generation opportunity to create a suite of modern

21st Century parks that are operationally self - financing

Park Completed (planned)

Lepe Country Park May 2018

Royal Victoria Country Park (Chapel) August 2018

Queen Elizabeth Country Park September 2019

Staunton Farm & Parkland September 2020

Manor Farm October 2020

River Hamble Country Park March 2021

Royal Victoria Country Park (café) July 2021

P
age 56



Lepe Country Park

P
age 57



Queen Elizabeth Country Park

P
age 58



Royal Victoria Country Park (Chapel)

P
age 59



Manor Farm

P
age 60



Staunton Farm & Country Park

P
age 61



Work in progress

P
age 62



More to come.....

Barn at Barnfield (RHCP)Café at RVCP

P
age 63



Country Park 
Transformation

• Automatic Number Plate Recognition 
(ANPR) has increased honesty rating 
from average 73% in 17/18 to over 95% 
average, which has been maintained 
since January 2019

• ANPR go live at Staunton and River 
Hamble Country Park by the end of 2020

P
age 64



Country Park Transformation

0.6 

0.6 

0.7 

0.9 

0.9 

1.0 

1.5 

2.4 

3.0 

3.7 

4.2 

 -  0.5  1.0  1.5  2.0  2.5  3.0  3.5  4.0  4.5

Other costs (signage, infrastructure)

Manor Farm

Project Management

Staunton Farm

ANPR Car Park System

River Hamble Country Park

RVCP Café (completes 2021)

Queen Elizabeth Country Park

Lepe Country Park

Royal Victoria Country Park and Chapel

Staunton Country Park

Level of investment £19.5m

P
age 65



Benefits of Investment 

2.6

2.9

3.3

2.0

3.0

4.0

2017/18 2018/19 2019/20

Gross Income £m

2.6m

2.8m

3.0m

2.4

2.5

2.6

2.7

2.8

2.9

3.0

3.1

2017/18 2018/19 2019/20

Visitor Numbers

Parks Total Income Parks Total Visitors

P
age 66



Impact of Covid

• 22 March car parks and 

facilities at all parks closed

• Still open for access, walking 

and cycling

• Only catering and visitor 

services staff furloughed

P
age 67



Impact of Covid

Financial
• Forecast for 2020/21 - £2m (net loss) less 

income, increase expenditure and some 
savings.

• 21/22 - £1m (net loss) forecast 
(reduced capacity etc)

Staff
• 122 furloughed (44 staff and 78 casuals), 

80% returned to work by 1 August, only 10 
casuals currently still furloughed

P
age 68



Impact of Covid

• Increased use of countryside

• Rights of way reports up 30%

• Basingstoke Canal Towpath use up 300%

• Sites such as Lymington Nature Reserve 3x number of visits in same period

• Anti-social behaviour on the increase

• Productivity impact

P
age 69



Impact of Covid – research findings

P
age 70



Responding to the issues #walktherightway

P
age 71



Service Recovery

Good Communications

• Making sure our customers knew what 
we were up to behind the barn door

• Preparing them to return safely

• Keeping in touch with all our volunteers 
& casuals (nearly all back with us now)

• BBC Video

P
age 72

https://www.bbc.co.uk/news/av/uk-england-hampshire-52455394


Service Recovery Strategy

Aim to reopen facilities as soon as possible

• 13 May – Car parks and toilets opened

• 20 May - Increase in car parking capacity

• 15/16 June – Catering & visitor services (kiosk)

• 4-7 July – BBQ hire

• 7 July – Farm attractions and Titchfield Haven.

• 4 July onwards – working with concessions to open as 
quickly and safely as possible

• 4 July - Volunteers returned

P
age 73



Service Recovery 

• Current position
• Issues in countryside are reducing slightly

• Continue to open up indoor catering with 
reduced capacity

• VAT changes

• Working with changing guidance to review risk 
assessments and service delivery

• Trying to figure out how to have a socially 
distanced Santa!

• Close to budget now on all parking income (3% 
adrift) 80% down on admissions and 
memberships, catering 50% down

P
age 74



Service Recovery Strategy – what next?

Generate more income through improved facilities and additional activity

The most significant opportunities to increase income lay with the planned 
transformation works which have now restarted. This is the core focus for the 
Service although the majority will open in the Autumn. This includes:-

• New 300 space ANPR car park at Staunton CP

• New visitor hub at RHCP and ANPR go live

• New indoor play barn at Manor Farm along with catering and toilets

• Bike hub at QECP 

• New café at RVCP (2021 delivery)

• New products/activities - First drive in gig in the South held at RVCP 

• Making the most of people staycationing

P
age 75



Service Recovery - opportunities

• Set up staff register during lockdown 
now learning from this informed 
development of volunteer register.

• Changes in eating in means table 
service - better for both staff and 
customers.

• People clearly appreciating the 
countryside more - we will continue 
to make the most of it e.g. working 
with MIND.

"Never waste a good crisis"

P
age 76



Leve you on a high note...

P
age 77



Thank you for your time
Any questions?

P
age 78



 

 
 

 

 

        
  HAMPSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL 

 
Report 

 

Committee: Culture and Communities Select Committee 

Date of meeting: 21 September 2020 

Report Title: Work Programme 

Report From: Director of Transformation & Governance  

Contact name: Emma Cousins  

Tel:    0370 779 5788 Email: emma.cousins@hants.gov.uk 

 

Purpose of the Report  

1. To review and agree the Work Programme for the Culture and Communities 
Select Committee.  

 

Recommendation 

2. That the Committee agree the Work Programme as attached and make any 
amendments as necessary. 

 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 

Page 79

Agenda Item 9



 

 
 

CORPORATE OR LEGAL INFORMATION: 
 

Links to the Strategic Plan 
 

Hampshire maintains strong and sustainable economic 
growth and prosperity: 

yes 

People in Hampshire live safe, healthy and independent 
lives: 

yes 

People in Hampshire enjoy a rich and diverse 
environment: 

yes 

People in Hampshire enjoy being part of strong, 
inclusive communities: 

yes 

 
 

 
 

Section 100 D - Local Government Act 1972 - background documents 
  
The following documents discuss facts or matters on which this report, or an 
important part of it, is based and have been relied upon to a material extent in 
the preparation of this report. (NB: the list excludes published works and any 
documents which disclose exempt or confidential information as defined in 
the Act.) 
 
Document Location 

None  

 
 
 

Page 80



 

 
 

 
EQUALITIES IMPACT ASSESSMENT: 

 

1. Equality Duty 

The County Council has a duty under Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 (‘the 
Act’) to have due regard in the exercise of its functions to the need to: 

- Eliminate discrimination, harassment and victimisation and any other conduct 
prohibited by or under the Act with regard to the protected characteristics as set 
out in section 4 of the Act (age, disability, gender reassignment, marriage and 
civil partnership, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and 
sexual orientation); 

- Advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant 
protected characteristic within section 149(7) of the Act (age, disability, gender 
reassignment, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual 
orientation) and those who do not share it; 

- Foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic within section 149(7) of the Act (see above) and persons who do 
not share it.  

Due regard in this context involves having due regard in particular to: 

- The need to remove or minimise disadvantages suffered by persons sharing a 
relevant protected characteristic that are connected to that characteristic; 

- Take steps to meet the needs of persons sharing a relevant protected 
characteristic that are different from the needs of persons who do not share it; 

- Encourage persons sharing a relevant protected characteristic to participate in 
public life or in any other activity in which participation by such persons is 
disproportionally low. 

2. Equalities Impact Assessment: 
This is a scrutiny review document setting out the work programme of the Committee. 
It does not therefore make any proposals which will impact on groups with protected 
characteristics. 

Page 81



WORK PROGRAMME – CULTURE AND COMMUNITIES SELECT COMMITTEE 
 

 

 

Topic Issue Reason for inclusion 2
1

 

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

 

3
0

 

N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

 

1
2

 J
a

n
u

a
ry

 

2
0

2
1
 

2
2

 M
a

rc
h

 

2
0

2
1
 

 
Pre-scrutiny 
items 
 

2021/22 Revenue Budget Report 
for Recreation and Heritage 

Pre-scrutiny of 2021/22 budget proposals for 
relevant services prior to consideration by the 
Executive Member. 

  x  

2021/22 Revenue Budget Report 
for Countryside and Rural Affairs 

Pre-scrutiny of 2021/22 budget proposals for 
relevant services prior to consideration by the 
Executive Member. 

  x  

Overview items 
Library Service Opening Times 
Consultation 

To receive an update on the ongoing 
consultation. 

x    

Overview items 
(regular 
updates) 

Update on Hampshire Cultural 
Trust 

To receive a regular update from the Cultural 
Trust. 
Last item – January 2019 

x    

Transforming the County 
Council’s Country Parks 

To receive a regular update on the programme 
progress. 
Last item – January 2019 

x    

Energise Me 
To receive a regular update from Energise Me. 
Last item – April 2018 

 x   

Library Service Update 
To receive a regular update on the Library 
Service. 
Last item – July 2020 

    

  
 
 

P
age 82


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of previous meeting
	6 Hampshire Cultural Trust update
	7 Country Parks update/impact of Covid
	9 Work Programme



